
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability,
notify the City Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA
28 CFR/36).

(Public Comment during Public Hearing or Agenda item comment)

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments on agenda items and public hearings to five (5) minutes and general comments for
non-agenda items to (3) minutes.. Any person desiring to address the Committee during such period is required to sign in with the City Clerk
prior to the Committee meeting between 5:00 p.m. and 5:15 p.m. on the third floor of City Hall or any time between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. in
the Office of the City Clerk, They shall provide their name, address and specify the agenda item they wish to address. Remarks shall be
directed to the matter being considered and the speaker is allowed to speak only one time. If written materials are to be submitted twelve (12)
copies should be made available, and may not be returned.
 

Agenda
Finance Committee

June 18, 2018
5:30 P.M. - City Council Chambers

 
MAYOR BOB COBURN TO RECOGNIZE LORI PAULSON AS THE JUNE 2018 EMPLOYEE OF THE
MONTH.

           
1. Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of June 4, 2018.
 

2. Consider approval of claims for all City departments May 31, 2018 through June 13, 2018.
 

3. Receive report from Staff and the Department of Human Services (DHS) on zoning regulations
and licensing for day care facilities and provide direction to Staff, or take other necessary
action. (Gary D. Garvin) 

 

4. Consider approval of the Community Development Block Grant 2018 Application Documents;
Citizen Participation Plan, Applicant Resolution, and Leverage Resolution (Resolution No.
2732) committing up to $103,887.00 as leverage, all relating to the Oklahoma Department of
Commerce Small Cities Set Aside Grant Fund Program, or take other necessary action. (Gary
D. Garvin)

 

5. Consider approval of the renewal of a Professional Service Agreement beginning July 1, 2018
ending June 30, 2019, with Michael Gilliard, Attorney at Law, to provide representation for the
City of Muskogee in Workers’ Compensation Court, or take other necessary action. (Roy D.
Tucker) 

 

6. Consider approval of a Professional Service Agreement beginning July 1, 2018 ending June 30,
2019, with Mr. Michael Finerty, Attorney at Law, to provide representation for the City of
Muskogee in Workers’ Compensation Court, or take other necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker) 

 

7. Consider approval of a Professional Service Agreement with Betty Outhier Williams to provide



7. Consider approval of a Professional Service Agreement with Betty Outhier Williams to provide
representation for the City of Muskogee in four (4) inverse condemnation lawsuits filed in
Muskogee County District Court styled England v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CV-2007-20;
Lacey v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CV-2007-1377; Taff v. City of Muskogee, Case No.
CJ-2007-1410; Vaughn v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2007-1371; and authorize the Mayor
and City Clerk to execute the agreement, or take other necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker) 

 

8. Consider Approval to renew a Professional Service Agreement with Cate and Hammons Law
Firm to provide representation for the City of Muskogee in nine (7) inverse condemnation
lawsuits filed in Muskogee County District Court; Michael & Lori Carmen v. City of
Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2011-168; Stanley & Linda Clark v. City of Muskogee, Case No.
CJ-2011-164; W.C. Cochran v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2011-466; Harold & LeAnne
Cox v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2011-465; Jerry & Marie Maxey v. City of Muskogee,
CJ-11-469, Bobby & Linda Scoggins v. City of Muskogee, CJ-11-467; Crystal Thompson v.
City of Muskogee, CJ-11-478, and the Civil case titled Lois Ivey v City of Muskogee,
CV-07-1730, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement. (Roy D.
Tucker) 

 

9. Consider approval to renew the municipal liability insurance contract with Oklahoma Municipal
Assurance Group in the amount of $251,710.00 for policy year July 1, 2018 through June 30,
2019, or take other necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker)

 

10. Consider approval to renew the municipal property and rolling stock insurance from Oklahoma
Municipal Assurance Group (OMAG)in the amount of $177,410.00, for policy year July 1,
2018 through June 30, 2019, or take other necessary action. (Jean Kingston)

 

11. Consider approval of awarding construction contract to Tonto Construction Inc., for the
Junction Area Wastewater Collection System Improvements in the amount of $249,690.00, as
the lowest best bid, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley) 

 

12. Consider approval of awarding construction contract to Cook Consulting LLC, for the Westside
Area Wastewater Collection System Improvements in the amount of $1,252,208.00, as the
lowest best bid, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley) 

 

13. Consider approval of awarding a construction contract to L & L Construction for the Phase I
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements in the amount of $2,843,375.00, as the lowest best
bid, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley) 

 

14. Consider approval of awarding lowest bid to Midstate Traffic Control in the amount of
$39,520.00 for LED and Backplate Signal Project, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

 

15. Consider approval of awarding to the lowest/best bid to ICM in the amount of $53,940.00 for
Hydro Excavator with Fire Hydrant Valve Exerciser, or take other necessary action. (Greg
Riley)

 

16. Consider approval of awarding the lowest/best bid for chemicals used in the Water Treatment



16. Consider approval of awarding the lowest/best bid for chemicals used in the Water Treatment
Plant to Brenntag Southwest, Univar USA, Hawkins Inc., D&F Services, Evoqua Water
Technologies, Pennco Inc., and Petra Chemical, more particularly described as attached, or take
other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

 

17. Consider approval of awarding a purchase from a National Joint Powers Alliance (Cooperative
Purchasing) for a submersible hydraulic water pump to Thompson Pump in the amount of
$45,356.00, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

 

18. Consider approval of receiving donated funds for the month of April, 2018 in the amount of
$286.00 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take
other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

 



   
Finance Committee 1.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Initiator: Tammy Tracy, City Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of June 4, 2018.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
06-04-2018finmin 



MINUTES
FINANCE COMMITTEE

June 4, 2018

The Finance Committee of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met at 5:30 p.m. on Monday, June 4,
2018 in Council Chambers, Third Floor, Municipal Building, with the following in attendance: 

Present: Mayor John R. Coburn; Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston; Committee Member Patrick Cale;
Committee Member Jaime Stout; Committee Member Wayne Johnson; Committee Member
Derrick Reed; Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Absent: Committee Member Marlon Coleman; Committee Member Dan Hall 

Staff
Present:

Mike Miller, City Manager; Mike Stewart, Assistant City Manager; Roy Tucker, City
Attorney; Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk; Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works
Director; Kelly Plunkett, Human Resources Director; Rex Eskridge, Police Chief; Prag
Mahajan, Civil Engineer 

 

               
1. Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of May 21, 2018.   
 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, seconded by Committee Member

Wayne Johnson  tp approve Finance Committee minutes of May 21, 2018. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
2. Consider approval of claims for all City departments May 16, 2018 through May 30, 2018.   
 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Committee

Member Patrick Cale to approve claims for all City departments May 16, 2018 through
May 30, 2018. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
3. Consider approval to renew an Interlocal Agreement with Hilldale Public Schools to furnish

Law Enforcement and School Resource Officer functions for the District campuses within
the City, or take other necessary action.  (Mike Stewart)

Assistant City Manager Mike Stewart stated the City proposes to enter into an Interlocal
agreement for FY2018-2019 with Hilldale Public Schools to provide School Resource
Officers.  The agreement must be renewed annually.  Last year, Hilldale reimbursed the

  



Officers.  The agreement must be renewed annually.  Last year, Hilldale reimbursed the
city at approximately 59% of the payroll costs for the officers and in FY2018-2019,
Hilldale will reimburse the City at 66% of the payroll costs.  All parties are in agreement
with the renewal of the same.

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Jaime Stout, seconded by Mayor John R.

Coburn to approve to renew an Interlocal Agreement with Hilldale Public Schools to
furnish Law Enforcement and School Resource Officer functions for the District
campuses within the City. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
4. Receive report from Neighbors Building Neighborhoods as to the financial condition and

progress towards achieving the goal of development of grant activities on behalf of the City
and other not-for-profit activities that enhance the economic well being of the Muskogee
community; as well as consider approval to renew the Cooperative Agreement for FY
2019-2020, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

Assistant City Manager Mike Stewart stated the City of Muskogee provided funding of
$25,000.00 to Neighbors Building Neighborhoods (NBN), under an annual contract for FY
2017-2018. That contract includes a provision for submitting a summary of their
accomplishments to the City Council. This report will be presented to highlight the activities
and achievements of NBN. Typically, the City sets aside $25,000.00 to fund a cooperative
agreement with NBN to continue its activities. This amount is included in the budget for FY
2018-2019.  City Council has already approved and Staff recommends approval of the
renewed agreement.

Kym Lynch presented the report.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Jaime Stout, seconded by Committee Member

Patrick Cale to approve Neighbors Building Neighborhoods as to the financial condition
and progress towards achieving the goal of development of grant activities on behalf of
the City and other not-for-profit activities that enhance the economic well being of the
Muskogee community; as well as consider approval to renew the Cooperative Agreement
for FY2019-2020. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Other: Committee Member Derrick Reed (ABSTAIN) 
Carried 

 
5. (No action taken):  Receive a report from the Muskogee County Public Transit Authority as

to the financial condition, progress, and achievement of providing public transportation, as
well as consider approval to renew the Cooperative Agreement for FY 2019-2020, or take
other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

  



 
6. Consider awarding the highest bid to Dan Leatherman for a five (5) year lease of the City of

Muskogee’s landfill grazing land, beginning June 1, 2018 and ending May 31, 2023, or take
other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

Assistant City Manager Mike Stewart stated the landfill grazing lease ends on May 31,
2018.  In April 2018, Airport Staff put the grazing land out for bid.  The City received many
bids and the highest winning bid was for 20,800.00.  The bid tabulation sheet is attached for
reference.  This bid is complete and meets the requirements of the City of Muskogee.  

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Patrick Cale, seconded by Committee Member

Wayne Johnson to approve awarding the highest bid to Dan Leatherman for a five (5)
year lease of the City of Muskogee’s landfill grazing land, beginning June 1, 2018 and
ending May 31, 2023. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
7. Consider approval of low bid from Hogle Plumbing (Plumbing Contractor) for maintenance

and upkeep of all City facilities and buildings, or take other necessary action. (Billy Coffer)

Assistant City Manager Mike Stewart explained the Facilities Department received and
reviewed the bids for the annual contract for the maintenance and upkeep of the plumbing
within all City facilities and buildings. Hogle Plumbing was low bid (see attached Tabulation
Sheet) at an hourly rate of $68.00 for contractor and journeyman, and $42.00 for apprentice.
Response time is one (1) to four (4) hours for emergency calls, and one (1) day or less
for normal situations. He stated last year's contract was awarded to Hogle Plumbing.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Mayor John R.

Coburn to approve low bid from Hogle Plumbing (Plumbing Contractor) for maintenance
and upkeep of all City facilities and buildings. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
8. Consider approval of low bid from B & R Electric (Electrical Contractor) for maintenance

and upkeep of all City facilities and buildings, or take other necessary action. (Billy Coffer)

Assistant City Manager Mike Stewart explained the Facilities Department received and
reviewed the bid (only one bid received) for the annual contract for the maintenance and
upkeep of the electrical system within all City facilities and buildings. B & R Electric was
low bid (see attached Tabulation Sheet) at an hourly rate of $65.00 for contractor and
journeyman, and $35.00 for apprentice. Response time is one and one-half (1-/2) hours for
emergency calls, and same day normal situations. He stated last year's contract was awarded
to B & R Electric.

  



 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Committee

Member Jaime Stout  to approve low bid from B & R Electric (Electrical Contractor) for
maintenance and upkeep of all City facilities and buildings. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
9. Consider approval of low bid from Hix AC Service (Mechanical  Contractor) for

maintenance and upkeep of all City facilities and buildings, or take other necessary action.
(Billy Coffer)

Assistant City Manager Mike Stewart explained the Facilities Department received and
reviewed the bids for the annual contract for the maintenance and upkeep of the mechanical
(heat/air) equipment within all City facilities and buildings. Hix AC Service was low bid (see
attached Tabulation Sheet) at an hourly rate of $68.00 for contractor and journeyman, and
$30.00 for apprentice. Response time is within six (6) hours for emergency calls, and eight
(8) hours for normal situations. He stated last year's contract was awarded to Hix AC Services.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Deputy Mayor

Janey Boydston to approve low bid from Hix AC Service (Mechanical  Contractor) for
maintenance and upkeep of all City facilities and buildings. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
10. Consider approval of low bid from Johnson Service (Refrigeration Contractor) for

maintenance and upkeep of all City facilities and buildings, or take other necessary action.
(Billy Coffer)

Assistant City Manager Mike Stewart explained the Facilities Department received and
reviewed the bids for the annual contract for the maintenance and upkeep of
the refrigeration equipment within all City facilities and buildings. Johnson Service was low
bid (see attached Tabulation Sheet) at an hourly rate of $80.00 for contractor, S40.00 for
journeyman, and $20.00 for apprentice. Response time is within one (1) hour for emergency
calls, and two (2) hours for normal situations.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Patrick Cale, seconded by Committee Member

Wayne Johnson to approve low bid from Johnson Service (Refrigeration Contractor) for
maintenance and upkeep of all City facilities and buildings. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 



 
11. Consider approval of Resolution No. 2729 declaring certain items of personal property

presently in possession of the City of Muskogee, to be surplus to the needs of the City and
authorize the City Manager to dispose of the same as per the attached list, or take other
necessary action. (Mike Miller)

City Manager Mike Miller stated City departments have determined that the list of attached
items are deficient and have requested these items be declared surplus to the needs of the
City of Muskogee. The following departments have submitted lists:
  

Assistant City Manager, City Attorney, City Hall, Civic Center, Library, Public
Works/Environment Control, Parks & Recreation, Planning, Public Works Admin
Office, Pollution Control, Public Works/Solid Waste, Public Works/Streets, Public
Works/Water Plant, Police Dept, IT Department, Pollution Control  

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Jaime Stout, seconded by Deputy Mayor Janey

Boydston to approve Resolution No. 2729 declaring certain items of personal property
presently in possession of the City of Muskogee, to be surplus to the needs of the City
and authorize the City Manager to dispose of the same as per the attached list. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
12. Consider approval to award a contract to Alliance Benefit Group in the amount of $39,600.00

per year for three (3) years pursuant to solicited requests for proposals for Third Party
Administration Services of the City's Self-Insured Workers Compensation Plan, or take other
necessary action.  (Roy D. Tucker)

City Attorney Roy Tucker stated Alliance Benefit Group has been the Third Party
Administrator (TPA) for the City’s Workers Compensation Plan for over 17 years. This year,
the Purchasing Department solicited competitive proposals. RFP's were sent to seven (7)
different agencies; six (6) responses were received. A review committee was created by the
City Manager to review the received proposals. The committee was comprised of Leslie
Arnold, Roy Tucker, Dakota Jones and Donnie Wimbley. Upon review and consideration,
the committee has recommended continuation of services of Alliance Benefit Group. 

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Patrick Cale, seconded by Committee Member

Jaime Stout to approve a contract to Alliance Benefit Group in the amount of $39,600.00
per year for three (3) years pursuant to solicited requests for proposals for Third Party
Administration Services of the City's Self-Insured Workers Compensation Plan. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 



13. Consider approval of awarding contract to the lowest and best bid from Whittinghill Disposal
Services, Inc., in the amount of $2.75 per square foot for the demolition of dilapidated
structures project under the Community Development Block Grant Demolition and
Clearance Projects Bid Group 39, or take other necessary action. (Tish Callahan)

Assistant Planning Director Tish Callahan stated the City received a total of two (2) bids for
the demolition and clearance project Bid Group 39 that were opened and read aloud on May
24, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. 
J & S Construction, LLC (Vinita, OK)                               $5.00 / sq. ft.
Whittinghill Disposal Service, Inc                                     $2.75 / sq. ft.

The project consists of the demolition of dilapidated structures located in the qualifying area
using the Community Development Block Grant funds. Bid Advertisement notices were
mailed to twenty-eight (28) contractors; Advertisement for Bidders was published in the
local newspaper two (2) consecutive weeks; twenty (20) days prior to the bid opening date as
required. Staff's recommendation is to award the Demolition Bid Group 39 project
to Whittinghill Disposal Services, Inc. as the lowest and best bid.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Jaime Stout, seconded by Committee Member

Wayne Johnson to approve awarding contract to the lowest and best bid
from Whittinghill Disposal Services, Inc., in the amount of $2.75 per square foot for the
demolition of dilapidated structures project under the Community Development Block
Grant Demolition and Clearance Projects Bid Group 39. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
 

CHAIRMAN DERRICK REED
FINANCE COMMITTEE
finmin
TT/aw



   
Finance Committee 2.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Initiator: Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of claims for all City departments May 31, 2018 through June 13, 2018.

BACKGROUND:
Claims List for all City Departments.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve of the claims for all City Department May 31, 2018 through June 13, 2018.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Claims List 













   
Finance Committee 3.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Initiator: Gary Garvin, Planning Director
Department: Planning
Staff Information Source: Gary D. Garvin, Director of Planning & Economic Development 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Receive report from Staff and the Department of Human Services (DHS) on zoning regulations
and licensing for day care facilities and provide direction to Staff, or take other necessary action. (Gary
D. Garvin) 

BACKGROUND:
On November 13, 2017, the City Council directed staff to prepare a report reviewing zoning
regulations from other cities, comparable in size to Muskogee, that classify and regulate Day Care
Homes and Centers.  The report was distributed to City Council on January 14, 2018.  Staff stated that
allowing commercial uses within an established residential area would violate the intent and purpose of
the zoning regulations.  Most residential lots do not have sufficient space to provide the required
parking for commercial uses.  Child care centers not only need parking spaces, but a safe drop-off and
pick-up area, other than a city street.  The report stated that increasing the number of children allowed in
a day care home from seven (7) to twelve (12) would create traffic, parking and safety issues within a
residential neighborhood.  Additionally, a commercial use within a residential neighborhood can
negatively impact the value of dwellings within that neighborhood.  For those reasons, Staff
recommended no changes be made to the ordinances for day care homes.

At the request of Councilor Ivory Vann, the report was discussed further at the June 7, 2018 Public
Works Committee which resulted in City Council requesting additional research relating to home day
cares.  Staff was directed to invite a representative from DHS to speak and answer questions on state
licensing requirements for day care facilities.  It was also requested that Staff provide the following
information: 

A map displaying the locations of all licensed home day cares within the City limits, and
Any traffic information available, and
Zoning regulations and requirements for day care homes from surrounding communities including
Ft. Gibson, Wagoner and Tahlequah, and
Any information provided by committee speakers Ms. Logan and Ms. Thomas.

Jennifer Mallory with the Department of Human Services has agreed to attend the Public Works
meeting on June 18, 2018 to discuss the licensing requirements for day cares within the State
of Oklahoma.  Staff has prepared a map displaying the locations of all licensed day cares homes and
centers within the City limits.  There are 21 day care homes (7 or fewer children) and 17 day care
centers (8 or more children) for a total of 38 day care facilities within the City limits.  All of the day care
centers are zoned commercial, obtained a special exception within the multi-family zone under previous
regulations, or located within a church.  Due to the size of the map, it is available for review within
Dropbox or a printed copy can be provided upon request.  The only traffic information obtained from
other cities is that some limit the number of vehicles per hour to day care homes that are not zoned
commercially.  The additional information requested from surrounding cities and towns is attached



along with any information provided to Staff from the committee speakers.

As previously stated, Staff recommends not increasing the number of children allowed in a day
care home located within a residential neighborhood.  However, if City Council wishes to proceed with
amending the regulations,  I would recommend creating a Large Day Care Home classification (up to 12
children) that would require a special exception through the Board of Adjustments and comply with
the home occupation requirements.  Additionally, the structure would be required to comply with the
International Building Codes adopted by the State of Oklahoma and the City of Muskogee.

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommendation is to receive the report and take no additional action on this item.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Daycare Comparison Report 
Day Care Map - Larger Map available in Dropbox 
Logan - Cherokee County Day Care Facilities List 
Logan - Wagoner Home Occupation 



7429_Day Care Comparison Report

Page 1 of 2

CITY; POPULATION

DAY CARE HOME 
(1-7) ALLOWED 
IN R-1 SINGLE-
FAMILY

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

LARGE DAY CARE 
HOME (8-12) 
ALLOWED IN R-1 
SINGLE-FAMILY

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

Bartlesville; 36,647 YES

MUST COMPLY WITH MINOR HOME 
OCCUPATION REGULATIONS - AVERAGE OF 1 
VEHICLE PER HOUR BETWEEN 7 A.M. AND 7 

P.M.

NO  

REQUIRES COMMERCIAL ZONING OR SPECIAL 
EXCEPTION (USE) PERMIT AND MUST COMPLY 

WITH MAJOR HOME OCCUPATION 
REGULATIONS WITHIN RESIDENTIAL ZONE

Broken Arrow; 107,403 YES
MUST COMPLY WITH HOME OCCUPATION 

REGULATIONS - ALL EMPLOYEES MUST 
RESIDE IN THE HOME

NO

REQUIRES A COMMERCIAL OR REQUIRES OR 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION (USE) PERMIT AND ALL 

EMPLOYEES MUST RESIDE IN THE HOME 
WITHIN RESIDENTIAL ZONE

Checotah; 3,225 YES NO ZONING REGULATIONS YES NO ZONING REGULATIONS

Coweta; 9,673 NO
UP TO 5 CHILDREN IS ALLOWED AS AN 
ACCESORY USE - SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

REQUIRED FOR MORE THAN 5
NO

REQUIRES A COMMERCIAL ZONE OR SPECIAL 
EXCEPTION (USE) PERMIT WITHIN 

RESIDENTIAL ZONE  

Ft. Gibson; 4,154 YES
ALL EMPLOYEES MUST RESIDE IN THE HOME 

- MAXIMUM OF 7 - 300' SPACING 
REQUIREMENT - 

NO  REQUIRES SPECIAL EXCEPTION (USE) PERMIT  

Lawton; 96,867 YES ALL EMPLOYEES MUST RESIDE IN THE HOME NO

REQUIRES A COMMERCIAL ZONE OR SPECIAL 
EXCEPTION (USE) PERMIT WITHIN MULTI-

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONE - NOT ALLOWED 
WITHIN SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONE 

Moore; 61,415 YES ALL EMPLOYEES MUST RESIDE IN THE HOME NO  REQUIRES COMMERCIAL ZONE

Muskogee; 38,352 YES NONE NO REQUIRES COMMERCIAL ZONE

Owasso; 35,784 NO
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUIRED - ONLY 4 
CHILDREN ALLOWED IN SINGLE-FAMILY 

ZONE WITHOUT SPECIAL USE PERMIT
NO  SPECIAL EXCEPTION (USE) PERMIT REQUIRED 

FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL ZONES

Shawnee; 31,465 YES NONE NO  

SPECIAL EXCEPTION (USE) PERMIT REQUIRED 
FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL ZONES - 
ONLY ALLOWED BETWEEN 6 A.M. AND 9 P.M., 
SPACING REQUIREMENT AND MUST COMPLY 

WITH BUILDING CODES



7429_Day Care Comparison Report

Page 2 of 2

CITY; POPULATION

DAY CARE HOME 
(1-7) ALLOWED 
IN R-1 SINGLE-
FAMILY

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

LARGE DAY CARE 
HOME (8-12) 
ALLOWED IN R-1 
SINGLE-FAMILY

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

Stillwater; 49,504 NO REQUIRES SPECIAL EXCEPTION (USE) 
PERMIT - 300' SPACING REQUIRMENT NO

REQUIRES A COMMERCIAL ZONE FOR 11 OR 
MORE OR A SPECIAL EXCEPTION (USE) PERMIT 

WITHIN RESIDENTIAL (NOT TO EXCEED 10 
CHILDREN) AND ONLY BETWEEN 6 A.M. AND 9 

P.M., MUST COMPLY WITH SPACING 
REQUIREMENTS AND MUST COMPLY WITH 

BUILDING CODES

Tahlequah; 16,741 YES MUST COMPLY WITH HOME OCCUPATION 
REGULATIONS NO REQUIRES COMMERCIAL ZONE

Wagoner; 8,846 YES
NO REGULATIONS FOR DAY CARES ONLY 

HOME OCCUPATION - ALL EMPLOYEES MUST 
RESIDE IN THE HOME

YES
NO REGULATIONS FOR DAY CARES ONLY HOME 
OCCUPATION - ALL EMPLOYEES MUST RESIDE 

IN THE HOME













   
Finance Committee 4.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For:  Gary Garvin, Planning  Initiator: Tish Callahan,

Planning Asst.
Department: Planning
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the Community Development Block Grant 2018 Application Documents; Citizen
Participation Plan, Applicant Resolution, and Leverage Resolution (Resolution No. 2732) committing
up to $103,887.00 as leverage, all relating to the Oklahoma Department of Commerce Small Cities Set
Aside Grant Fund Program, or take other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

BACKGROUND:
The City of Muskogee is making application to the Oklahoma Department of Commerce (ODOC)
Community Development Block Grant Small Cities Set Aside funding assistance program for grant year
2018. A public hearing, an application requirement, will be held on Monday, June 25, 2018 during the
Muskogee City Council Meeting regarding the City's application. Following the public hearing,
the required application documents will be submitted for approval.  The documents are: the Citizen
Participation Plan, Applicant Resolution and Leverage Resolution. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the application documents; Citizen Participation Plan, Applicant Resolution, and Leverage
Resolution committing up to $103,887 as leverage, relating to the Oklahoma Department of Commerce
Small Cities Set Aside 2018 Grant Fund Program.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
CDBG Grant Funds $103,887
CDBG City Match $103,887
Total Project funds available $207,774

Attachments
Citizen's Participation Plan 2018 
Applicant Resolution 2018 
Leverage Resolution 
Public Hearing Notice 2018 



ATTACHMENT  B 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
2018 STATE SMALL CITIES PROGRAM 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 
 

2018 Citizen Participation Plan 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

2018 CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 
 

City of Muskogee intends to implement a Citizen Participation Program for its 2018 
application process to accomplish the following objectives: 
 
A. Provide for and encourage citizen participation, particularly by low and moderate 

income persons who reside in areas where Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds are proposed to be used.  This will be accomplished by: 

 
1.  Providing frequent and timely public notice of CDBG program activities in the 
 local newspaper and by posting at City/County Office. 
 
2.  Adopting a comprehensive CDBG Statement of Needs. 
 
3.  Conducting a Special Public Hearing to inform citizens of the proposed 2018 

CDBG project and authorizing the Mayor to sign a CDBG application in a 
formal Council/Board of Commissioners meeting. 

 
B. Ensure that citizens will be given reasonable and timely access to local meetings, 

information, and records relating to proposed and actual use of funds, including, but 
not be limited to: 

 
1.  The amount of CDBG funds to be made available for the current fiscal year, if 

the proposed project is approved. 
 

2.  The range of activities that may be undertaken with those funds. 
 

3.  The estimated amount of those funds proposed to be used for activities that 
will benefit low and moderate income persons. 
 

4.  The proposed CDBG activities likely to result in displacement and any anti-
displacement and relocation plans developed by the City of Muskogee in 
accordance with Section 104(d)(1) and (2) of the Act. 
 

5.  The basis on which the City of Muskogee may provide technical assistance to 
groups representative of persons of low and moderate income that may 
request assistance in developing proposals.  The level and type of assistance 
to be provided is at the discretion of the City of Muskogee and does not 
necessarily include providing funding to such groups. 

 
 



ATTACHMENT  B 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
2018 STATE SMALL CITIES PROGRAM 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 
 

2018 Citizen Participation Plan 
Page 2 of 3 

 

6.  This requirement will be accomplished by discussing the CDBG proposal during 
regular Council/Board of Commissioners meetings and in one formal public 
hearing prior to the submittal of the City of Muskogee 2018 CDBG application.  
During the hearing the five (5) items listed above will be explained to the public.  
Records of the 2018 CDBG process will be maintained in the City of Muskogee by 
the City Clerk and will be available upon request for review by the public.  A brief 
summary of the proposed 2018 CDBG project will be available for public review 
after the Council/Board of Commissioners has made its final selection. 

 
C. Provide for a minimum of two (2) public hearings; one (1) prior to submission of the 

application for funding of the project for the purpose of obtaining citizen views and 
formulating or responding to proposals and questions, and the other end of the 
grant period if the City of Muskogee receives funding, that discusses the City of 
Muskogee’s accomplishments in relation to initial plans.  The application stage 
hearing will include discussion of CDBG needs, and the development of activities 
being proposed for CDBG funding.  There will be reasonable notice of all hearings, 
which will be scheduled for times and locations convenient to the potential and 
actual beneficiaries and which will accommodate the handicapped. Regularly 
scheduled Council/Board of Commissioners meetings will not be used for this 
purpose. 

 
1. This requirement will be met through scheduling a Special Public Hearing to 

discuss the City of Muskogee 2018 CDBG proposal.  At this hearing, the proposed 
project will be reviewed for the public and further citizen input will be solicited.  
Notice will be given seven (7) to ten (10) days in advance of this hearing in the 
Muskogee Phoenix and by posting at the City Office.  The hearing will be held in 
the early evening so those citizens who work may attend.  A second hearing will 
be held at the end of the grant period if the City of Muskogee is funded in the 
2018 CDBG process. 

 
D. Meet the needs of non-English speaking residents in those instances where a 

significant number of non-English speaking residents can reasonably be expected to 
participate in the 2018 CDBG process.  For example:  the City of Muskogee does not 
currently have a significant population of non-English speaking citizens.  However, 
every effort will be made to accommodate the needs of any non-English speaking 
citizens who wish to participate. 

 
E. Provide citizens with reasonable advance notice of, and opportunity to comment on, 

proposed activities not previously described in the City of Muskogee funding request 
and on activities which are proposed to be deleted or substantially changed in terms 
of purpose, scope, location or beneficiaries. 

 



ATTACHMENT  B 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
2018 STATE SMALL CITIES PROGRAM 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 
 

2018 Citizen Participation Plan 
Page 3 of 3 

 

The proposed seven (7) to ten (10) day notice for all public meetings and hearings 
in connection with the City of Muskogee 2018 CDBG application process is believed 
by the City of Muskogee to afford citizens with reasonable advance notice.  In 
addition, if any change is proposed to the purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries 
of the proposed project or if the CDBG project budget changes by more than 25%, 
the public will be notified and afforded an opportunity for additional input. 

 
F. Provide the place, telephone number, and times when citizens are able to submit 

written complaints or grievances and the process the City of Muskogee will use to 
provide a timely, written response to such complaints or grievances.  For example:  
Citizens with comments or grievances on the 2018 CDBG process may submit them 
in writing or in person at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business hours or may 
call 918-682-6602.  The City of Muskogee will respond to such comments or 
grievances within fifteen (15) working days, where practicable. 

 
By formally adopting this Citizen Participation Plan, the Muskogee City Council accepts 
the responsibility for implementing its provisions.  The Muskogee City Council further 
charges all employees and contractors with the responsibility of implementing this plan 
and living up to the spirit of the citizen participation requirements of the 2018 CDBG 
program. 
 
Adopted this 25th day of June, 2018 by the City Council of Muskogee. 
 
___________________________ 
John R. Coburn, Mayor - Chief Elected Official 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________  
Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk 
 



ATTACHMENT A 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
2018 SMALL CITIES PROGRAM 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
WHEREAS, Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, Public 
Law 93-383, as amended, authorized by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development, as representative of the United States of America, to grant to the State of 
Oklahoma funds and administrative responsibility for the “Small Cities Community 
Development Block Grant” program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oklahoma Department of Commerce, pursuant to designation by the 
Governor as the administering agency of the Community Development Block Grant 
Program for Small Cities in Oklahoma, is directed to further the purposes of community 
development in the State, and is authorized and empowered to accept funds from the 
Federal Government or its agencies and to enter into such contracts and agreements as 
are necessary to carry out the functions of the Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee is a local unit of general purpose government that 
will provide opportunity for input by residents in determining and prioritizing community 
development needs through its written Citizen Participation Plan; and  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Muskogee City Council that City of 
Muskogee desires to obtain assistance in community development and hereby requests 
the Oklahoma Department of Commerce to provide assistance under the policies, 
regulations, and procedures applicable to local communities in Oklahoma. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Muskogee City Council that City of 
Muskogee affirms its commitment to take all action within its power to facilitate the 
receipt of the assistance of community development funds if the City of Muskogee is 
awarded a Community Development Block Grant, and upon receipt to administer said 
grant by the rules and regulations established by the United States of America, the 
State of Oklahoma, and all empowered agencies thereof. 
 
ADOPTED this 25th day of _June_, 2018, at a regularly scheduled meeting of the 
governing body, in compliance with the Open Meeting Act, 25 O.S. §§ 301-314 (2001). 
 
John R. Coburn, Mayor  Date    
  
   
Signature of Chief Elected Official   
   (S E A L) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me _                                     _, 2018      
 
My commission expires _                      ____, 20____.  Commission No. ____  
  
  
     Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk  



RESOLUTION NO. 2732

A RESOLUTION RELATING TO A COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT FOR THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA 
COMMITTING UP TO $103,887 AS LEVERAGE FROM THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE 

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee has entered into an agreement with the Oklahoma 
Department of Commerce to participate in the Small Cities Set-Aside program and has been awarded 
funds with a 1:1 ratio match to be used for demolition of structures within the city limits of 
Muskogee, Oklahoma, and 

WHEREAS, as a condition to the funding of the Community Development Block Grant, the 
Oklahoma Department of Commerce has required adoption of a resolution by the City Council of 
the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, to commit funds in the amount of $103,887 to the project, 

NOW THEREFORE, Be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Muskogee, 
Oklahoma that, 

The City of Muskogee, through the general operating budget, agrees to commit up to 
$103,887 toward the demolition of structures within the city limits of Muskogee, 
Oklahoma. 

ADOPTED this 25th day of June, 2018 

City of Muskogee, Oklahoma 

_________________________________ 
John R. Coburn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk 

Approved as to form and legality this 
________ day of ___________, 2018. 

(Seal) 

Roy D. Tucker, City Attorney 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL ON:  June 25, 2018 



TO BE PUBLISHED AS A LEGAL NOTICE IN THE MUSKOGEE DAILY 
PHOENIX ON June 15, 2018 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

CDBG FY 2018 
 
The City of Muskogee is considering applying to the Oklahoma Department of 
Commerce (ODOC) Community Development Block Grant Community 
Development funding assistance.  The State of Oklahoma has funds available to 
units of local government to undertake viable community development activities 
that primarily benefit persons defined as low and moderate income.   
 
Community development has been identified as a City priority need and a 
tentative decision has been made to renew funding from the ODOC for $103,887 
in Fiscal Year 2018. 
 
The purpose of this public hearing is to enable comments on the specific project 
activities that are proposed and to provide a clear explanation of the probable 
impact on the City and residents, should the project be funded. 
 
More specific details regarding eligible activities and program requirements will 

be provided at the public hearing on Monday, June 25, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. 

during the Muskogee City Council meeting to be held at Muskogee City 

Hall, 229 West Okmulgee, Council Chambers, 3rd Floor. 
 
Any questions prior to the public hearing can be directed to the City of Muskogee 
Planning Department (918) 684-6232. 



   
Finance Committee 5.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Leslie Arnold,

Attorney Secretary
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Attorney 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the renewal of a Professional Service Agreement beginning July 1, 2018 ending
June 30, 2019, with Michael Gilliard, Attorney at Law, to provide representation for the City of
Muskogee in Workers’ Compensation Court, or take other necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker) 

BACKGROUND:
Mr. Gilliard has represented the City of Muskogee for several years on cases filed by employees before
the Oklahoma Workers’ Compensation Court.  Normally these cases are heard in Tulsa, however on
occasion the cases are heard in Oklahoma City.  His representation also includes appeals of adverse
judgments on a case by case determination if the City considers the case to have been decided adverse
to medical evidence or the law.  The costs as of 5-31-18 is $18,604.67.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the professional services agreement for the fiscal year July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019,
with Mr. Michael Gilliard to provide representation on workers’ compensation cases.           
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Agreement 













   
Finance Committee 6.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Leslie Arnold,

Attorney Secretary
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Attorney 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of a Professional Service Agreement beginning July 1, 2018 ending June 30, 2019,
with Mr. Michael Finerty, Attorney at Law, to provide representation for the City of Muskogee in
Workers’ Compensation Court, or take other necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker) 

BACKGROUND:
The City Attorney's Office seeks to engage Mr. Finerty to assist in handling cases before the Oklahoma
Worker's Compensation Court. For the last several years, these cases have been handled exclusively by
Mike Gilliard; however, Mr. Gilliard has recently closed his firm and has accepted employment with
another firm. Mr. Gilliard's new firm is not exclusively dedicated to workers compensation claims, so
availability and potential conflicts of interest may arise. Therefore, in order to be prudent, it is necessary
to engage Mr. Finerty.  

The addition of Mr. Finerty will have no impact to the budget. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the professional services agreement for the fiscal year July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019,
with Mr. Michael Finerty to provide representation on workers’ compensation cases.           
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Agreement 













   
Finance Committee 7.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Leslie Arnold,

Attorney Secretary
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Attorney 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of a Professional Service Agreement with Betty Outhier Williams to provide
representation for the City of Muskogee in four (4) inverse condemnation lawsuits filed in Muskogee
County District Court styled England v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CV-2007-20; Lacey v. City of
Muskogee, Case No. CV-2007-1377; Taff v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2007-1410; Vaughn v.
City of Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2007-1371; and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the
agreement, or take other necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker) 

BACKGROUND:
In 2007, four lawsuits were filed in Muskogee County District Court demanding damages arising from
alleged unlawful takings by the City on the structures owned individually by Plaintiffs, England, Taff,
Vaughn, and Lacey. These structures were each condemned and demolished pursuant to City Code and
state law for dilapidated structures. This is a renewal of an agreement that expires on June 30, 2018. The
attached agreement provides for representation of the four lawsuits. Each lawsuit alleges similar acts by
the City and is subject to similar defenses.      

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Professional Services Agreement with Betty Outhier Williams to provide representation for
the City of Muskogee in four inverse condemnation lawsuits filed in Muskogee County District Court
styled England v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CV-2007-20; Lacey v. City of Muskogee, Case No.
CV-2007-1377; Taff v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2007-1410; Vaughn v. City of Muskogee, Case
No. CJ-2007-1371; and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Agreement 









   
Finance Committee 8.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Leslie Arnold,

Attorney Secretary
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Attorney 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider Approval to renew a Professional Service Agreement with Cate and Hammons Law Firm to
provide representation for the City of Muskogee in nine (7) inverse condemnation lawsuits filed in
Muskogee County District Court; Michael & Lori Carmen v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2011-168;
Stanley & Linda Clark v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2011-164; W.C. Cochran v. City of
Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2011-466; Harold & LeAnne Cox v. City of Muskogee, Case No. CJ-2011-465;
Jerry & Marie Maxey v. City of Muskogee, CJ-11-469, Bobby & Linda Scoggins v. City of Muskogee,
CJ-11-467; Crystal Thompson v. City of Muskogee, CJ-11-478, and the Civil case titled Lois Ivey v
City of Muskogee, CV-07-1730, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement.
(Roy D. Tucker) 

BACKGROUND:
In 2007, 2011 & 2012, these lawsuits were filed in Muskogee County District Court demanding damages
arising from alleged unlawful takings by the City on properties that are individually owned by
Defendant. This is a renewal of an agreement that expires on June 30, 2019. The
attached agreement provides for representation of the eight lawsuits.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Cate and Hammons Law Firm to provide
representation for the City of Muskogee in seven condemnation lawsuits, and the Lois Ivey case, and
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Agreement 



1

RETAINER AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLIENT AND ATTORNEY

On this day of ___________, 2018, the “Client”, City of Muskogee, Oklahoma,
and the “Attorney” Cliff Cate of the “Firm” Cate and Hammons Law Office, enter into the following 
agreement for Client to retain the services of the Firm to represent the client in the projects
commonly known as the Meadows subdivisions lawsuits, and the Lois Ivey civil case. This 
agreement supercedes and makes more specific all previous agreements between the parties.

1. Scope. Firm shall provide those legal services reasonably required to represent client
and shall take reasonable steps to keep client informed of progress and to respond to client’s
inquiries. Firm’s services will include all attorney functions in defending the above-described
lawsuits, as well as in keeping client fully informed of what is going on in the cases.

2.  Clients’ Duties. In order to adequately represent Client, it is important that Client
be truthful with Attorney, cooperate with Attorney, keep Attorney informed of developments,
abide by this agreement, pay Firm’s bills on time and keep Firm advised of employee contacts and
witnesses’ current address and telephone number.

3.  Legal Fees. Client agrees to pay each month for any legal services based upon the
Firm’s standard legal billing rates. Billable time shall include preparation, research, and travel 
time. The firm’s hourly billing rates, at this time, are as follows: $210.00 per hour. Client
understand that such rates may increase in the future; Firm agrees that Client will be notified
of any raise in rate prior to the raise taking effect. Billable time will be charged in minimum 
0.1 unit of time (12 minutes).

4.  Costs and Expenses. In addition to the above fee, Client agrees to reimburse firm 
for costs and expenses incurred in connection with Attorney’s representation of Client,
including fees fixed by law or assessed by public agencies, long distance telephone calls,
messenger or delivery fees, postage expenses, in-office photocopying at $.10 per copy, parking, 
mileage at $.54 per mile (to change as the IRS approved travel rate changes) and investigation 
expenses..

5.  Termination. Client is free to consult with another attorney at any time, and Client
may discharge the Firm as Client’s Attorney at any time. The Firm may withdraw from
representing Client with Client’s consent or for good cause. Good cause includes Client’s
breach of this agreement, Client’s refusal to cooperate with Firm or to follow Attorney’s advice 
on a material matter or any other fact or circumstance that would render attorney’s continuing
representation unlawful or unethical.

6.  Disclaimer of Guarantee. Client understand that nothing in this agreement and
nothing in Attorney’s statements to Client are to be construed as a promise or guarantee about
the outcome of any of client’s matters. Firm makes no such promises or guarantees. Attorney’s
comments about the outcome of Client’s matters are expressions of opinion only. The Firm
agrees to hold harmless the Client and indemnify it from any liability, suit, cause of action, or
other legal proceedings which may be brought or claimed against the Client as a result of



2

Firm’s performance under this Agreement.

7.  Independent Contractor. It is understood and agreed, with respect to the services 
the Firm shall render pursuant to this contract, that the Firm will perform such services 
exclusively as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of the Client.

8.  Confidentiality. The Firm will hold in a fiduciary capacity for the benefit of the
Client all confidential information and data relating to the Client, which shall have been 
obtained by the Firm during the term of this Agreement. The terms of the confidentiality
statement shall not apply to any information that becomes a part of the public record.

9.  Non-assignability. The rights and obligations of the Firm hereunder are not
assignable and cannot be delegated, as the Firm has unique skills and abilities and specific
performance is necessary.  Any such purported assignment or delegation without the written
consent of the Client shall be void and, at the option of the Client, this Agreement shall be 
terminated.

10.  Contact. The City Attorney for the City of Muskogee shall be the Client
representative for all matters pertaining to this Agreement.

11. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2018 and shall 
remain in full force and effect through June 30, 2019, unless the requested services are 
completed prior to that date. This agreement shall be renewed for additional one year terms under
the same terms and conditions unless either party notifies the other that this agreement shall
terminate.  Upon termination of this Agreement, Attorney shall immediately deliver all materials 
belonging to the Client and a copy of all pleadings filed in the case, and all documents that have
been developed through the cases to the City Attorney, which shall become the property of the
Client.

12.   Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended, in writing, by mutual consent of the 
parties.

Approved this ______ day of _____________________, 2018.

__________________________
Cliff Cate

_________________________
JohnTyler Hammons



3

CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA
A Municipal Corporation

By: ________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK

Approved as to form and legality this _____ day of __________ 2018.

_____________________________________________
ROY D. TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY 



   
Finance Committee 9.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Leslie Arnold,

Attorney Secretary
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Attorney 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval to renew the municipal liability insurance contract with Oklahoma Municipal
Assurance Group in the amount of $251,710.00 for policy year July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, or
take other necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker)

BACKGROUND:
The City's current policy of liability insurance expires at midnight on June 30, 2018.  Oklahoma
Municipal Assurance Group (OMAG) is asking for renewal for the municipality policy in the amount of
$251,710.00, which is an increase from the previous fiscal year, due to a higher volume of claims
experience, and insurance ratings.  There is no deductible for claims made for employee benefit
administration, for bodily injury or property damage.  All other claims have a policy deductible of
$1,000.00.  The City Attorney's Office recommends accepting this renewal.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Award the municipal liability insurance renewal contract to Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group in
the amount of $251,710.00 for policy year July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Declarations Page 







   
Finance Committee 10.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Leslie Arnold,

Attorney Secretary
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Treasurer 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval to renew the municipal property and rolling stock insurance from Oklahoma
Municipal Assurance Group (OMAG)in the amount of $177,410.00, for policy year July 1, 2018
through June 30, 2019, or take other necessary action. (Jean Kingston)

BACKGROUND:
The City's current policy of property and rolling stock insurance expires at midnight on June 30, 2018. 
OMAG is asking for renewal for the municipality policy in the amount of $177,410.00, which is a
decrease from the previous fiscal year, due to the Honeywell equipment insurance requirement falling
off the policy.  All claims have a $5,000.00 deductible.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Accept the quote from OMAG for $177,410.00 with a $5,000.00 deductible.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Finance Committee 11.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Prag Mahajan, Civil

Engineer II
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; George Kingston, Assistant Director of

Operations ; Prag Mahajan Civil Engineer; Donnie Wimbley Purchasing
Director; Jessica Zwirtz, CAD Tech , Jay Updike, HUB 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of awarding construction contract to Tonto Construction Inc., for the Junction Area
Wastewater Collection System Improvements in the amount of $249,690.00, as the lowest best bid, or
take other necessary action. (Greg Riley) 

BACKGROUND:
The City advertised and solicited for Bid proposals and received four (4) proposals. 

Tonto Construction1.
PM Construction & Rehab LLC2.
Sapulpa Digging Inc.3.
Horseshoe Construction Inc. 4.

Bid proposal submitted by Tonto was most complete, economical and responsive and meets the
requirements for the City
Bid Tab sheet is attached along with unit price comparison for your reference
This work is being completed as part of the OWRB loan for sewer collection system.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve award of a construction contract to Tonto Construction Inc. for the Junction Area wastewater
collection system improvements in the amount of $249,690.00 as per the unit prices submitted in their
bid, or take other necessary action. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Rec letter 
Bid Tab 





ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR
Holloway, Updike and Bellen, Inc. Tonto Construction, Inc. PM Construction & Rehab, LLC Sapulpa Digging, Inc. Horseshoe Construction, Inc.

PO Box 1543 8101 W 33rd St S 131 N Richey Street PO Box 1105 2309 S Battleground Rd

Muskogee, OK  74402 Muskogee, OK  74401 Pasadena, TX  77506 Sapulpa, OK  74067 LaPorte, TX  77571

TOTAL $275,000.00 TOTAL $249,690.00 TOTAL $284,870.00 TOTAL $289,563.00 TOTAL $314,775.00

ITEM 

NO.
DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT

Bid Schedule

1
Pipe Burst with 18" HDPE DR 17 or Open 

Cut and Replace with 18" PVC DR 35
621 LF 130.00 $80,730.00 170.00 $105,570.00 179.00 $111,159.00 195.00 $121,095.00

2
Pipe Burst with 20" HDPE DR 17 or Open 

Cut and Replace with 21" PVC DR 35
568 LF 170.00 $96,560.00 200.00 $113,600.00 178.00 $101,104.00 235.00 $133,480.00

3 5' Diameter Manhole 3 EA 10,000.00 $30,000.00 7,900.00 $23,700.00 6,500.00 $19,500.00 4,500.00 $13,500.00

4 Point Repair 2 EA 6,000.00 $12,000.00 7,500.00 $15,000.00 10,000.00 $20,000.00 11,000.00 $22,000.00

5 Storm Water Prevention Plan 1 LS 1,500.00 $1,500.00 2,000.00 $2,000.00 7,000.00 $7,000.00 250.00 $250.00

6 Service Line Reconnection 4 EA 1,600.00 $6,400.00 250.00 $1,000.00 200.00 $800.00 550.00 $2,200.00

7 Solid Slab Sod 500 SY 5.00 $2,500.00 8.00 $4,000.00 20.00 $10,000.00 4.50 $2,250.00

8 Allowance 1 LS 20,000.00 $20,000.00 20,000.00 $20,000.00 20,000.00 $20,000.00 20,000.00 $20,000.00

TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICETOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

Muskogee, Oklahoma
HUB Project No. 17MUSJUNCSWR

June 7, 2018    11:00 am

UNIT PRICE

BID TABULATION
Wastewater Improvements

Junction Area Sewer Line Rehabilitation

Muskogee Municipal Authority
CWSRF Project No. ORF-17-0019-CW



   
Finance Committee 12.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Prag Mahajan, Civil

Engineer II
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; George Kingston, Assistant Director of

Operations ; Prag Mahajan Civil Engineer; Donnie Wimbley Purchasing
Director; Jessica Zwirtz, CAD Tech , Jay Updike, HUB 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of awarding construction contract to Cook Consulting LLC, for the Westside Area
Wastewater Collection System Improvements in the amount of $1,252,208.00, as the lowest best bid,
or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley) 

BACKGROUND:
The City advertised and solicited for Bid proposals and received four (4) proposals. 

Cook Consulting LLC1.
Carstensen Contracting Inc.2.
Goodwin & Goodwin Inc.3.
Horseshoe Construction Inc. 4.

Bid proposal submitted by Cook Consulting LLC was most complete, economical and responsive and
meets the requirements for the City
Bid Tab sheet is attached along with unit price comparison for your reference.
This work is being completed as part of the OWRB Loan for sewer collection systems.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve award of a construction contract to Cook Consulting LLC for the Westside Area wastewater
collection system improvements in the amount of $1,252,208. 00 as per the unit prices submitted in their
bid, or take other necessary action. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Eng Rec letter 
Bid Tab 





ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR
Holloway, Updike and Bellen, Inc. Cook's Consulting, LLC Carstensen Contracting, Inc. Horseshoe Construction, Inc. Goodwin & Goodwin, Inc.

PO Box 1543 PO Box 10 1507 7th Street SE 2309 S Battleground Road 3503 Free Ferry Rd

Muskogee, OK  74402 Fort Gibson, OK  74434 Pipestone, MN  56164 LaPorte, TX  77571 Fort Smith, AR  72903

TOTAL $1,550,000.00 TOTAL $1,252,208.00 TOTAL $1,428,790.50 TOTAL $1,539,724.00 TOTAL $1,777,099.00

ITEM 

NO.
DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT

Bid Schedule

1 21" Gravity Sewer Line PVC DR 35 1040 LF 70.00 $72,800.00 85.75 $89,180.00 130.00 $135,200.00 140.00 $145,600.00

2 Pipe Bursting with 18" HDPE DR 17 341 LF 495.00 $168,795.00 275.00 $93,775.00 300.00 $102,300.00 525.00 $179,025.00

3 Pipe Bursting with 16" HDPE DR 17 2,110 LF 188.00 $396,680.00 240.00 $506,400.00 185.00 $390,350.00 275.00 $580,250.00

4 12" Force Main PVC DR 18 3360 LF 40.00 $134,400.00 43.50 $146,160.00 105.00 $352,800.00 60.00 $201,600.00

5 Boring and 36" Steel Casing (0.250" Wall) 40 LF 450.00 $18,000.00 490.00 $19,600.00 800.00 $32,000.00 500.00 $20,000.00

6 Boring and 20" Steel Casing (0.250" Wall) 250 LF 260.00 $65,000.00 352.00 $88,000.00 475.00 $118,750.00 350.00 $87,500.00

7 Air Release Valve 2 EA 6,950.00 $13,900.00 19,900.00 $39,800.00 22,000.00 $44,000.00 6,000.00 $12,000.00

8 Service Line Reconnection 30 EA 2,000.00 $60,000.00 1,630.00 $48,900.00 1,150.00 $34,500.00 1,200.00 $36,000.00

9 Manholes (5' Diameter) 12 EA 3,240.00 $38,880.00 7,420.00 $89,040.00 4,500.00 $54,000.00 6,000.00 $72,000.00

10
Asphalt or Concrete Pavement Removed 

and Replaced
300 LF 21.00 $6,300.00 150.00 $45,000.00 15.00 $4,500.00 185.00 $55,500.00

11 Tack Coat ODOT 407(B) 0250 934 GAL 5.50 $5,137.00 7.00 $6,538.00 20.00 $18,680.00 6.00 $5,604.00

12
Superpave, Type S4 (PG 64-22 OK) ODOT 

411 (C) 5960
700 TONS 94.60 $66,220.00 120.00 $84,000.00 90.00 $63,000.00 120.00 $84,000.00

13 Cold Milling Pavement ODOT 412 5267 3846 SY 11.00 $42,306.00 10.00 $38,460.00 9.00 $34,614.00 15.00 $57,690.00

14 Patching ODOT SP 850 SY 55.00 $46,750.00 48.00 $40,800.00 50.00 $42,500.00 105.00 $89,250.00

15 Right-of-Way Restoration 6510 LF 4.00 $26,040.00 1.25 $8,137.50 3.00 $19,530.00 8.00 $52,080.00

16 Solid Slab Sod 4000 SY 4.00 $16,000.00 2.50 $10,000.00 4.50 $18,000.00 6.00 $24,000.00

17 Allowance 1 LS 75,000.00 $75,000.00 75,000.00 $75,000.00 75,000.00 $75,000.00 75,000.00 $75,000.00

TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICETOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

Muskogee, Oklahoma
HUB Project No. 17MUSKWSSES

June 7, 2018    11:00 am

UNIT PRICE

BID TABULATION
Wastewater Improvements
Westside Collection System

Muskogee Municipal Authority
CWSRF Project No. ORF-17-0019-CW



   
Finance Committee 13.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Prag Mahajan, Civil

Engineer II
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; George Kingston, Assistant Director of

Operations ; Prag Mahajan Civil Engineer; Donnie Wimbley Purchasing
Director; Jessica Zwirtz, CAD Tech , Jay Updike, HUB 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of awarding a construction contract to L & L Construction for the Phase I Wastewater
Treatment Plant Improvements in the amount of $2,843,375.00, as the lowest best bid, or take other
necessary action. (Greg Riley) 

BACKGROUND:
The City advertised and solicited for Bid proposals and received seven (7) proposals. 

Cook Consulting LLC1.
L&L Construction Inc.2.
Crosland Heavy Contractors3.
BRB Contractors Inc.4.
Walters-Morgan construction Inc.5.
Wynn construction6.
JS Haren Company. 7.

Bid proposal submitted by L & L Construction was most complete, economical and responsive and
meets the requirements for the City
Bid Tab sheet is attached along with unit price comparison for your reference
This project is being completed as part of the OWRB Loan for sewer plant improvements.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve award of a construction contract to L & L Construction for the Phase 1 wastewater treatment
plant improvements in the amount of $,2,843,375. 00 as per the unit prices submitted in their bid, or take
other necessary action. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Eng Rec Letter 
Bid Tab 





CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR

Engineers Estimate L&L Construction, Inc. Crossland Heavy Contractors Cook Consulting, LLC. BRB Contractors, Inc. Walters-Morgan Construction, Inc. Wynn Construction JS Haren Company

P.O. Box 36 14149 East Admiral Place P.O. Box 10 3805 NW 25th Street 2616 Tuttle Creek Blvd. 11901 N Eastern Ave. 1175 Highway 11, North

Jenks, OK 74037 Tulsa, OK 74116 Fort Gibson, OK 74434 Topeka, KS 66618 Manhattan, KS 66502 Oklahoma City, OK 73131 Athens, TN 37303

BASE BID $2,565,700.00 BASE BID $2,595,000.00 BASE BID $2,773,125.00 * BASE BID $2,818,000.00 BASE BID $2,922,500.00 BASE BID $3,070,600.00 BASE BID $3,117,000.00

BB + ALTS 1 & 2 $2,843,375.00 BB + ALTS 1 & 2 $2,858,125.00 BB + ALTS 1 & 2 $3,060,000.00 * BB + ALTS 1 & 2 $3,098,000.00 BB + ALTS 1 & 2 $3,275,200.00 BB + ALTS 1 & 2 $3,502,405.00 BB + ALTS 1 & 2 $3,512,000.00

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT PRICETOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

BASE BID

1
Raw Sewage Pump Station Improvements        

(Complete-In-Place)
1 LS $1,478,500.00 $1,478,500.00 $1,524,000.00 $1,524,000.00 $1,652,000.00 $1,652,000.00 $1,635,000.00 $1,635,000.00 $1,705,000.00 $1,705,000.00 $1,814,500.00 $1,814,500.00 $1,794,000.00 $1,794,000.00

2
Trickling Filter Effluent and Recirculation Pumps 

(Complete-In-Place)
1 LS $749,500.00 $749,500.00 $760,000.00 $760,000.00 $817,000.00 $817,000.00 $820,000.00 $820,000.00 $800,500.00 $800,500.00 $869,600.00 $869,600.00 $1,013,000.00 $1,013,000.00

3 Plant Drain Pumps (Complete-In-Place) 1 LS $116,800.00 $116,800.00 $106,000.00 $106,000.00 $92,570.00 $92,570.00 $139,000.00 $139,000.00 $194,000.00 $194,000.00 $155,000.00 $155,000.00 $90,000.00 $90,000.00

4
Secondary Sludge Transfer Pumps                   

(Complete-In-Place)
1 LS $90,900.00 $90,900.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $81,555.00 $81,555.00 $94,000.00 $94,000.00 $93,000.00 $93,000.00 $101,500.00 $101,500.00 $90,000.00 $90,000.00

5 Construction Allowance 1 LS $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE NO. 1

6

Application of Solventless Epoxy Concrete 

Coating in Raw Sewage Pump Station. Refer to 

Specification Section 9.2 for Requirements.

9,000 SF $16.40 $147,600.00 $14.75 $132,750.00 $16.40 $147,600.00 $16.00 $144,000.00 $26.40 $237,600.00 $23.00 $207,000.00 $23.00 $207,000.00

7

Application of Concrete Repair Materials in Raw 

Sewage Pump Station. Refer to Specification 

Section 9.2 for Requirements.

4,500 SF $21.75 $97,875.00 $26.75 $120,375.00 $21.75 $97,875.00 $28.70 $129,150.00 $21.80 $98,100.00 $41.00 $184,500.00 $26.00 $117,000.00

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE NO. 2

8

Concrete Plugs and Pipe Demolition at 

Abandoned 48” Coody Creek Outfall, Refer to 

Drawing Sheet 26 for Requirements.

1 LS $32,200.00 $32,200.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $41,400.00 $41,400.00 $6,850.00 $6,850.00 $17,000.00 $17,000.00 $40,305.00 $40,305.00 $71,000.00 $71,000.00

* Addition Error

Bid award period ends August 21, 2018 (90 days after bid opening)

3.4 MILLION

3.4 MILLION 3.4 MILLION

MAY 23, 2018 AT 2:00 P.M.

BID TABULATION 

PHASE 1 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENTS

MUSKOGEE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT REHABILITATION

TOTAL BID

17MUSKWWTP - Phase 1

Page 1 of 1

Holloway, Updike  and Bellen Inc.

Consulting Engineers



   
Finance Committee 14.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; Jim Wixom, Assistant Director of

Public Works/Operations; Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of awarding lowest bid to Midstate Traffic Control in the amount of $39,520.00 for
LED and Backplate Signal Project, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
This project includes replacing the LED signal heads at 32nd and Broadway, York and Chandler,  32nd
and Shawnee, 32nd and West Okmulgee, York and Shawnee and Main and Shawnee.  We are adding
backplates at 32nd and Broadway and York and Chandler.  We are also upgrading the pedestrian
crossings on York and Chandler to countdown LED signals.  The heads at these intersections are aging
and getting dim so we are doing this project to upgrade these signals.  This is budgeted in our signal
repair and maintenance account.

Bids were received as follows:
MidState Traffic Control -$39,520.00
Traffic & Lighting Systems-$42,493.92
Traffic Signal, Inc.-$43,730.00

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve awarding the lowest bid to MidState Traffic Control in the amount of $39,520.00 for LED and
Backplate Signal Project.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Tab Sheet 





   
Finance Committee 15.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; Danny Gable, Superintendant, Donnie

Wimbley, Purchasing Director 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of awarding to the lowest/best bid to ICM in the amount of $53,940.00 for Hydro
Excavator with Fire Hydrant Valve Exerciser, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
Key Equipment withdrew their bid of $47,759.00.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve to the next lowest bid to ICM in the amount of $53,940.00 for Hydro Excavator with Fire
Hydrant Valve Exerciser.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Finance Committee 16.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; Stephen Morton, Water Plant

Superintendent; George Kingston, Assistant Public Works Director-Utilities 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of awarding the lowest/best bid for chemicals used in the Water Treatment Plant to
Brenntag Southwest, Univar USA, Hawkins Inc., D&F Services, Evoqua Water Technologies, Pennco
Inc., and Petra Chemical, more particularly described as attached, or take other necessary action. (Greg
Riley)

BACKGROUND:
We find all of the lowest bids acceptable for our Water Treatment Chemicals other than coagulant. 
D&F Services was the third lowest price for our coagulant, however neither Hawkins, nor Chemtrade
ran plant trials prior to bidding their product, as is required per bid specs.  We have used D&F services'
product in the past with great results.  There is also potential savings by using their product, by reducing
the feed rate of the coagulant.  Therefore, we recommend using accepting D&F Services bid for
Coagulant as it is the best bid on this item.  The prices being awarded and companies are as follows.

Chlorine- Brenntag Southwest (.3225 cents per pound)
Fluorosilicic Acid- Univar USA (.1550 cents per pound)
Poly- Phosphate - Hawkins (.338 cents per pound)
Poly Aluminum Chloride coagulant- D&F Services (.2595 cents per pound)
Sodium Chlorite- Evoqua Water Technologies (.4450 cents per pound)
Ferric Chloride - Pennco (.118 cents per pound)
Caustic Soda- Brainard Chemical Company (.19 cents per pound)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve awarding the lowest bids for chemicals used in the water treatment plant to the companies as
listed below and the best bid for coagulant to D&F Services.

Chlorine- Brenntag Southwest (.3225 cents per pound)
Fluorosilicic Acid- Univar USA (.1550 cents per pound)
Poly- Phosphate - Hawkins (.338 cents per pound)
Poly Aluminum Chloride coagulant- D&F Services (.2595 cents per pound)
Sodium Chlorite- Evoqua Water Technologies (.4450 cents per pound)
Ferric Chloride - Pennco (.118 cents per pound)
Caustic Soda- Brainard Chemical Company (.19 cents per pound)

Fiscal Impact



Attachments
Memo Water Plant 
Chemical Bid Sheet 







   
Finance Committee 17.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; George Kingston, Assistant Public

Works Director-Utilities; Danny Gable, Water Distribution Superintendent;
Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of awarding a purchase from a National Joint Powers Alliance (Cooperative
Purchasing) for a submersible hydraulic water pump to Thompson Pump in the amount of $45,356.00, or
take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
The 2017/18 budget included a new equipment item for a hydraulic submersible pump for Water
Distribution.  The pump will be used as needed for pumping during water line repairs.  The National
Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) quote is $45,356.00 from Thompson Pump.  The City has successfully
used the NJPA for purchases such as this in the past and this quote is under the budgeted amount.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve awarding the purchase of the hydraulic submersible pump to Thompson Pump in the amount of
$45,356.00.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Account #500-6540-461-64-50

Attachments
NJPA Pump Quote 





   
Finance Committee 18.           
Meeting Date: 06/18/2018  
Submitted For:  Rex Eskridge, Police  Initiator: Gayle Johnson, Chief

Secretary
Department: Police
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of receiving donated funds for the month of April, 2018 in the amount of $286.00 for
the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take other necessary action.
(Rex Eskridge)

BACKGROUND:
City Council approved a Resolution authorizing a Sponsorship Program for the City's Animal Shelter
with said funds to be used for the purpose of neutering and spaying shelter animals.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve receiving donated funds for the month of April, 2018 in the amount of $286.00 for the City's
Animal Shelter Sponsorship Agenda Item Title.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
April Donations 



pg. 1

Animal Shelter Donations 

April 2018

Tracey Coleman $ 23.00

James Goodheart 20.00

Sandra Barney 65.00

Dylan Perry 10.00

Miriam Gonzalez 5.00

Kim Payton 5.00

Barbara McAlister 15.00

Marlene McBride 25.00

Christopher Jackson 10.00

Dottie Reeves 10.00

Wanda Winters 8.00

Oneta Bruner 10.00

Jeremy Estle 8.00

Martina Armas 5.00

Michael Pruel 14.00

Nellie Rose 20.00

Eric Thompson 8.00

Destinee Dunn 5.00

Catherine Clark 10.00

Jeff Hul l 10.00

Total: $ 286.00


	Agenda
	_1.   _1.__7426
	    06-04-2018finmin
	_2.   _2.__7433
	    Claims List
	_3.   _3._Day Care Regulations
	    Daycare Comparison Report
	12 CHILDREN IN RESIDENTIAL

	    Day Care Map - Larger Map available in Dropbox
	    Logan - Cherokee County Day Care Facilities List
	    Logan - Wagoner Home Occupation
	_4.   _4._CDBG 2018 Application Documents
	    Citizen's Participation Plan 2018
	    Applicant Resolution 2018
	    Leverage Resolution
	    Public Hearing Notice 2018
	_5.   _5._Professional Services Agreement
	    Agreement
	_6.   _6._Workers Compensation
	    Agreement
	_7.   _7._Professional Services Agreement
	    Agreement
	_8.   _8._Professional Services Agreement
	    Agreement
	_9.   _9._General Liability Insurance
	    Declarations Page
	_10.   _10._Property Insurance
	_11.   _11._Tonto Construction, Inc. 
	    Rec letter
	    Bid Tab
	_12.   _12._Cook Consulting LLC
	    Eng Rec letter
	    Bid Tab
	_13.   _13._L & L Construction 
	    Eng Rec Letter
	    Bid Tab
	_14.   _14._MidState Traffic Control 
	    Tab Sheet
	_15.   _15._ICM 
	_16.   _16._Chemical Bid
	    Memo Water Plant
	    Chemical Bid Sheet
	_17.   _17._NJPA bid 
	    NJPA Pump Quote
	_18.   _18._Donations Animal Shelter
	    April Donations

